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Independent auditor's report on the financial statements
of Open Joint Stock company "Paritetbank" for the period ended 31 December 2013

To the Chairman of the Management Board
of Open Joint Stock Company "Paritetbank"
Mr. V.N. Gorozhankin

To the shareholders and Supervisory Council of Open Joint Stock Company "Paritetbank"

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Open Joint Stock Company "Paritetbank", which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of compre-
hensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 2013, and a summary of sig-
nificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Audited entity's responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the audited entity is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, including for the development, implementation and
maintaining of an appropriate system of internal control as management determines it necessary to enable the prepa-
ration of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for selec-
tion and application of an appropriate accounting policy and reasonable estimates.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the fairness of these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of the Republic of Belarus "On Auditing", auditing rules effective in
the Republic of Belarus and International Standards on Auditing. Those rules and standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing audit procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi-
nancial statements. The audit procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial state-
ments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of ex-
pressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropri-
ateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management of the au-
dited entity, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opin-
ion.
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
OJSC "Paritetbank" as at 31 December 2013, its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2013 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

P.A. Laschenko
Partner, FCCA
Director, Ernst & Young FLLC

18 April 2014

Details of the audited entity

Name: Open Joint-Stock Company "Paritetbank"
Data on registration by the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus on 15 May 1991. Registration No. 5.
Address: Republic of Belarus 220002, Minsk, str. Kiseleva, 61 a.

Details of the auditor

Name: Ernst & Young Foreign Limited Liability Company
Certificate of State Registration No. 577 issued by the Minsk City Executive Committee on 7 April 2005.
Address: Republic of Belarus 220004, Minsk, str. Korolya, 51, 2d floor, Office 30
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Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements. 1

Notes 2013 2012
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 267,626 200,460
Amounts due from credit institutions 6 9,111 7,783
Derivative financial assets 7 175,340 175,833
Loans to customers 8 747,963 557,055
Assets held for sale 9 6,479 6,131
Available-for-sale investments 10 49,388 6,284
Property and equipment 11 88,463 90,916
Intangible assets 12 2,887 3,158
Current income tax assets – 170
Deferred income tax assets 13 10,045 –
Other assets 15 6,738 6,740

Total assets 1,364,040 1,054,530

Liabilities
Amounts due to credit institutions 16 103,852 16,588
Derivative financial liabilities 132 29
Amounts due to customers 17 771,338 718,509
Current income tax liabilities 3,787 –
Other liabilities 15 7,205 9,756

Total liabilities 886,314 744,882

Equity
Share capital 18 1,036,763 886,763
Fair value revaluation reserve for investments

available-for-sale – (1,027)
Treasury shares (1,172) –
Accumulated loss (557,865) (576,088)
Total equity 477,726 309,648
Total equity and liabilities 1,364,040 1,054,530

18 April 2014
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Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements. 2

Notes 2013 2012
Interest income
Loans to customers 195,394 167,116
Amounts due from credit institutions 11,350 11,197
Available-for-sale investments 8,974 9,922

Interest expense
Amounts due to customers (75,163) (80,956)
Amounts due to credit institutions (16,326) (10,547)
Debt securities issued (897) (6,286)
Net interest income 123,332 90,446

Allowance for loan impairment (4,751) (8,336)
Net interest income after allowance for

loan impairment 118,581 82,110

Net fee and commission income 20 22,882 19,201
Net gains/(losses) from investment securities

available-for-sale (789) 300
Net gains/(losses) from foreign

currencies:
- dealing 10,249 16,610
- translation differences (28,361) (8,468)
Net gains from derivative financial instruments 24 26,175 52,326
Other income 21 6,428 10,136
Non-interest income 36,584 90,105

Personnel expenses 22 (51,608) (53,312)
Depreciation and amortization 11, 12 (8,608) (8,748)
Other operating expenses 22 (45,788) (45,798)
Other impairment and provisions (reversal) 14 607 (759)
Non-interest expense (105,397) (108,617)

Profit before income tax expense
on net monetary position 49,768 63,598

Loss on net monetary position resulting from
hyperinflation (31,716) (13,201)

Profit before income tax expense and after loss on net mone-
tary position 18,052 50,397

Income tax benefit/(expense) 13 1,488 (5,306)

Profit for the year 19,540 45,091
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OJSC "Paritetbank" Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements. 3

Notes 2013 2012
Profit for the year 19,540 45,091

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subse-

quent periods:

Comprehensive gains/(losses)
on disposal of available-for-sale investments reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss 789 (300)

Unrealized gains/(losses) on available-for-sale
investments 238 2,638

Net other comprehensive income
not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods 1,027 2,338

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,027 2,338

Total comprehensive income for the year 20,567 47,429
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OJSC "Paritetbank" Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements. 4

Share capital Treasury shares
Accumulated

loss

Fair value reval-
uation reserve

for available-for-
sale invest-

ments Total

31 December 2011 787,077 – (620,156) (3,365) 163,556

Profit for the year – – 45,091 – 45,091
Other comprehensive

income for the year – – – 2,338 2,338
Total comprehensive

income for the year – – 45,091 2,338 47,429

 Increase in share capital 99,686 – – 99,686
Dividends declared – (1,023) – (1,023)
31 December 2012 886,763 – (576,088) (1,027) 309,648

Profit for the year – – 19,540 – 19,540
Other comprehensive

income for the year – – – 1,027 1,027
Total comprehensive

income for the year – – 19,540 1,027 20,567

Increase in share capital
(Note 18) 150,000 – – – 150,000
Dividends declared
(Note 18) – – (1,317) – (1,317)
Purchase of treasury

shares – (1,172) – – (1,172)

At 31 December 2013 1,036,763 (1,172) (557,865) – 477,726
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OJSC "Paritetbank" Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements. 5

Notes 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax expense and after loss on net monetary position 18,052 50,397
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 8,608 8,748
Allowance for loan impairment 4,751 8,336
Allowance / (reversal of allowance) for

loan impairment (607) 761
Loss on disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets 22 58 75
Loss on impairment of property and equipment – 1,507
Net change in interest accruals (11,526) 3,193
Gain on revaluation of derivative financial instruments (26,068) (37,659)
Unused vacation and bonus accrual 32 2,177
Amortization of discount on financial instruments

with non-market terms and amortization of commission on loans – 3,665
Loss from translation differences 28,361 8,468
Loss on write-off of office equipment 22 1,044 584
Assets received as debt repayment under the loan agreements (486) (4,529)
Gains on disposal of non-current assets held for sale 21 (261) (5,619)
Other adjustments – 2,479
Hyperinflation effect 29,960 13,201
Cash flows from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and liabilities 51,918 55,784
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due from credit institutions (564) 14,900
Loans to customers (239,310) (70,045)
Derivative financial instruments 23 98,323
Other assets 1,892 1,774
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due to credit institutions 81,773 (137,372)
Amounts due to customers 101,965 (14,697)
Other liabilities (3,586) 166
Net cash flows from operating activities

before income tax (5,889) (51,167)
Income tax paid (4,624) (8,146)
Net cash used in operating

activities (10,513) (59,313)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (7,202) (6,278)
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments (48,226) –
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment and intangible

assets 132 4
Proceeds from sale of assets

held for sale 138 8,942
Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale investments,

net 10,138 11,694
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (45,020) 14,362
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OJSC "Paritetbank" Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements. 6

Notes 2013 2012

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 150,000 99,686
Purchase of treasury shares (1,172) –
Net outflow from redemption of debt securities – (57,578)
Dividends paid (1,256) (1,014)
Net cash from financing

activities 147,572 41,094

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 92,039 (3,857)

Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash
equivalents 3,636 724

Effect of hyperinflation on cash and cash equivalents (28,509) (31,027)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 67,166 (34,160)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 200,460 234,620

Cash and cash equivalents, ending 5 267,626 200,460

Interest paid and received by the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to BYR 92,386 million and
BYR 215,718 million, respectively.

Interest paid and received by the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to BYR 87,537 million and
BYR 180,312 million, respectively.
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OJSC "Paritetbank" Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

7

1. Principal activities

Commercial Bank "Poisk" (hereinafter - the "Bank") was registered by the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus
(hereinafter – “NBRB) under number 5 of May 15, 1991. In 1992 the Bank was reorganized as SCB “Poisk” (Meeting of
shareholders as of March 12, 1992, minute №1) and registered in NBRB on July 2, 1992 under number 5. In 1999 the
National Bank of the Republic of Belarus became the principal shareholder of the Bank. On November 21, 2000 NBRB
registered amendments and additions to the Statute of SCB “Poisk”, accepted by the meeting of the Bank’s sharehold-
ers on September 21, 2000 (minute №2) and connected with changes in the name to the OJSC “Bank”Poisk”. On
March 26, 2004 General shareholders meeting decided to rename OJSC “Bank “Poisk” to OJSC “Paritetbank”. Chang-
es were registered by NBRB on May 5, 2004 under number 5.

The Bank's primary areas of operations include granting loans to customers, money transfers, foreign currency transac-
tions on the behalf of the customers and in its own name as well as fund raising and securities operations. The Bank
was granted banking license No. 5 issued on 8 May 2013, the Bank also possesses a license for securities and stock
exchange operations.

The Bank has 19 structural divisions in the Republic of Belarus and a head office, located in Minsk and having its regis-
tered address at 220002, Republic of Belarus, Minsk, str. Kiseleva, 61 a.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank’s share capital is distributed among its shareholders as follows:

Shareholder 2013, % 2012, %

The National Bank of the Republic of Belarus 99.65 99.36
Other 0.35 0.64

Total 100.00 100.00

The Bank is ultimately controlled by the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus, the latter is agency of state admin-
istration.

The Bank has the following investments in associates:

Name Country of operation
Ownership interest Business

activity2013 2012

LLC "Investment Company "Paritet" Republic of Belarus – 50.0% Finance lease

Associate was accounted for under the equity method. Total unrecognized share of the Bank in loss of its associate for
the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to BYR 2,388 million. As of 31 December 2012, unrecognized share of
the Bank in accumulated loss of its associate amounted to BYR 4,758 million (cumulative total). In 2013 the Bank
ceased to recognize investments in its associate taking amounts of investments to the Bank's expenses in line "Other
operating expense".

These financial statements were approved by the Bank's Management Board on 18 April 2014.

2. Basis of preparation

General

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”).

The Bank is required to maintain accounting records and prepare financial statements for regulatory purposes in ac-
cordance with the Belarusian accounting and banking legislation and related instructions ("BAS"). These financial
statements are based on BAS, as adjusted and reclassified in order to comply with IFRS.

Inflation accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the account-
ing policies below. For example, derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale investments have been meas-
ured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in millions of Belarusian rubles (hereinafter - "BYR million"), unless otherwise
indicated.
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2 Basis of preparation (continued)

Inflation accounting (continued)

With effect from 1 January 2012, the Belarusian economy is considered to be hyperinflationary in accordance with the
criteria in IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies. Accordingly, adjustments and reclassifications for
the purposes of presentation of the IFRS financial statements include restatement, in accordance with IAS 29, for
changes in the general purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble. The standard requires that the financial statements
prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the report-
ing date.

In applying IAS 29, the Bank used conversion factors derived from the Belarusian consumer price index (“CPI“), pub-
lished by the State Committee on Statistics of the Republic of Belarus. The CPIs for the seven year period and respec-
tive conversion factors after Belarus previously ceased to be considered hyperinflationary on 1 January 2006 are as
follows:

Year Index, % Conversion factor

2006 106.5 454.6
2007 112.0 405.9
2008 113.4 357.9
2009 109.9 325.7
2010 110.0 296.1
2011 208.7 141.9
2012 121.8 116.5
2013 116.5 100.0

Monetary assets and liabilities are not restated because they are already expressed in terms of the monetary unit cur-
rent at 31 December 2013. Non-monetary assets and liabilities (items which are not yet expressed in terms of the
monetary unit current at 31 December 2013) are restated by applying the relevant index. The effect of inflation on the
Bank's net monetary position is included in statement of profit or loss as loss in line "Loss on net monetary position
resulting from hyperinflation".

Application of IAS 29 results in an adjustment for the loss of purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble recorded in
comprehensive income. In a period of inflation, an entity holding an excess of monetary assets over monetary liabilities
loses purchasing power, which results in a loss on net monetary position. This loss is the difference resulting from the
restatement of non-monetary assets and liabilities, equity and items in the statement of comprehensive income. Corre-
sponding figures for the year ended 31 December 2012 have also been restated so that they are presented in terms of
the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble as of 31 December 2013.

Reclassifications

The following reclassifications have been made to 2012 balances to conform to the 2013 presentation:

Line item in the statement of finan-
cial position

Line item in the statement of finan-
cial position as previously reported Reclassification

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and balances with the National
Bank of the Republic of Belarus 19,694

Amounts due from credit institutions
Amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions (19,694)
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3. Summary of accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies

The Bank has adopted the following amended IFRS during the year:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including spe-
cial purpose entities. IFRS 10 replaces the parts of previously existing IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that dealt with consolidated financial statements and SIC-12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities.
IFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. To meet the definition of control in IFRS 10, all three criteria must be met, including: (a) an investor has
power over an investee; (b) the investor has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the inves-
tee; and (c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
IFRS 10 had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS
when fair value is required or permitted. The application of IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value meas-
urements carried out by the Bank.

IFRS 13 also requires specific disclosures on fair values, some of which replace existing disclosure requirements in
other standards, including IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The Bank provided these disclosures in Note 24.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities. The requirements in IFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the previously existing
disclosure requirements for subsidiaries. A subsidiary controlled with less than a majority of voting rights can serve as
an example. IFRS 12 disclosures are provided in Notes 4, 15.

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income.  Items that could
be reclassified to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net losses or gains on available-for-sale financial
assets) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified (for example, revaluation of buildings).
The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the Bank's financial position or performance.

Amendment to IAS 1 Clarification of the Requirement for Comparative Information
The amendment clarifies the difference between voluntary disclosure of additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information. An entity must include comparative information in the related notes to the
financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum required comparative
period. The amendment clarifies that the opening statement of financial position, presented as a result of retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in financial statements does not have to be accompanied by comparative infor-
mation in the related notes. The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the Bank's financial posi-
tion or performance.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., col-
lateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of net-
ting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for all recognized financial instru-
ments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32. These amendments had no impact on the Bank's
financial position or performance.

Investments in associates

Associates are entities in which the Bank generally has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or is otherwise able
to exercise significant influence, but which it does not control or jointly control. Investments in associates are accounted
for under the equity method and are initially recognized at cost, including goodwill. Subsequent changes in the carrying
amount reflect the post-acquisition changes in the Bank’s share of net assets of the associate. The Bank’s share of its
associates’ profits or losses is recognized in profit or loss, and its share of movements in reserves is recognized in oth-
er comprehensive income. However, when the Bank’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Bank does not recognize further losses, unless the Bank is obliged to make further payments to, or
on behalf of, the associate.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Bank and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Bank’s inter-
est in the associates; unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as trading and available-for-sale securities, derivatives and non-
financial assets such as investment property, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of financial in-
struments measured at amortized cost are disclosed in Note 24.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction be-
tween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

u in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

u in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Bank shall have access to the principal or the most advantageous market. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in the best and most effective way or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are availa-
ble to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value meas-
urement as a whole:

u Level 1 − Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

u Level 2 − Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable;

u Level 3 − Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing classification (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Bank deter-
mines the classification of its financial assets upon initial recognition, and subsequently can reclassify financial assets
in certain cases as described below.

Date of recognition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Bank
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category "financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss". Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated and effective hedging instruments. Gains
or losses on financial assets held for trading are recognized in profit or loss.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified
as trading securities or designated as investment securities available-for-sale. Such assets are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receiva-
bles are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value with gains and losses being recognized in other comprehensive income until the investment is
derecognized or until the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognized in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

If a non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading is no longer held for the purpose of selling in the near
term, it may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category in one of the following cases:

u a financial asset that would have met the definition of loans and receivables above may be reclassified to loans
and receivables category if the Bank has the intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or until ma-
turity;

u other financial assets may be reclassified to available for sale or held to maturity categories only in rare circum-
stances.

A financial asset classified as available for sale that would have met the definition of loans and receivables may be
reclassified to loans and receivables category if the Bank has the intention and ability to hold it for the foreseeable fu-
ture or until maturity.

Financial assets are reclassified at their fair value on the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in
profit or loss is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset at the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amortized cost, as applicable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, amounts due from the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus
(hereinafter - "NBRB"), excluding obligatory reserves, and amounts due from credit institutions that mature within ninety
days of the date of origination and are free from contractual encumbrances.

Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into various derivative financial instruments including forwards and
swaps in the foreign exchange markets. Such financial instruments are recorded at fair value. The fair values are esti-
mated based on quoted market prices or pricing models that take into account the current market and contractual pric-
es of the underlying instruments and other factors. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive
and as liabilities when it is negative. Gains and losses resulting from these instruments are included in the statement of
profit or loss as net gains from operations with derivative financial instruments.

Borrowings

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in the Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of own equity instruments. Such instruments include amounts due to credit institutions and amounts due to customers.
After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the borrowings are derecognized as well as through the amorti-
zation process.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Leases

i. Finance – Bank as lessor

The Bank recognizes lease receivables at value equal to the net investment in the lease, starting from the date of
commencement of the lease term. Finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on
the net investment outstanding. Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the lease receivables.

ii. Operating – Bank as lessee

Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term and included into other operating expenses.

iii. Operating – Bank as lessor

The Bank presents assets subject to operating leases in the statement of financial position according to the nature of
the asset. Lease income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The aggregate cost of incentives provided to lessees is recognized as a reduction of rental income over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. Initial direct costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are add-
ed to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

Measurement of financial instruments at initial recognition

When financial instruments are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, adjusted, in the case of instru-
ments not at fair value through profit or loss, for directly attributable fees and costs.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price. If the
Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, then:
u if the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e., a Level 1

input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Bank recognizes the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss;

u in all other cases, the initial measurement of the financial instrument is adjusted to defer the difference between
the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Bank recognizes that de-
ferred difference as a gain or loss only when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecog-
nized.

Offsetting of financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agree-
ments, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of financial position.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may in-
clude indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or de-
linquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganiza-
tion and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Amounts due from credit institutions and loans to customers

For amounts due from credit institutions and loans to customers carried at amortized cost, the Bank first assesses indi-
vidually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risks characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the assets' carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be ac-
crued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans together with the
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure
is probable.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of the Bank’s inter-
nal credit grading system that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry, geographical location,
collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Bank. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the years on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent
with, changes in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices,
commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Bank or their magni-
tude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evi-
dence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or pro-
longed decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognized in profit or loss – is reclassified from other comprehensive income to the state-
ment of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement; in-
creases in their fair value after impairment are recognized in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is ac-
crued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument in-
creases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve ex-
tending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.

Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continuously reviews
renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to
be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original or current effective
interest rate.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derec-
ognized where:

u the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

u the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through"’ arrangement; and

u the Bank either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither trans-
ferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the
extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and / or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or
similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement is the amount of the trans-
ferred asset that the Bank may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled op-
tion or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement is limited
to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is rec-
ognized in profit or loss.

Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank gives financial guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, guarantees and
acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair value, in "Other liabilities",
being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank's liability under each guarantee is measured at
the higher of the amortized premium and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial obligation
arising as a result of the guarantee.
Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is taken to the statement of profit or loss. The premium re-
ceived is recognized in profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Taxation

Current income tax expense is calculated in accordance with the regulations of the Republic of Belarus based on the
results recorded in the Bank's separate statement of comprehensive income prepared in accordance with the BAS in-
cluding adjustments for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of all temporary differences using the liability method. De-
ferred income taxes are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future,
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the timing of the rever-
sal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Belarus also has various operating taxes that are assessed on the Bank's activities. These taxes are included as a
component of other operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost is incurred
if the recognition criteria are met.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstanc-
es indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and facilities 8-100
Computers 2-10
Motor vehicles 7-10
Office furniture and other property and equipment 5-10

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
financial year-end.

Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses, unless
they qualify for capitalization.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include computer software and licenses.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of intangi-
ble assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful
economic lives of 2 to 50 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. Amortization periods and methods for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed at
least at each financial year-end.

Assets classified as held for sale

The Bank classifies a non-current asset (or a disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case the non-current asset
(or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups) and its sale must be highly probable.

The sale qualifies as highly probable if the Bank’s management is committed to a plan to sell the non-current asset (or
disposal group) and an active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated. Further, the
non-current asset (or disposal group) must have been actively marketed for a sale at price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value and in addition the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of the date of classification of the non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Assets classified as held for sale (continued)

The Bank measures an asset (or disposal group) classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The Bank recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-off of the asset (or
disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell if events or changes in circumstance indicate that their carrying amount
may be impaired.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

Share capital

Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preferred shares with discretionary dividends are both classified as equity. Ex-
ternal costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination, are shown as a de-
duction from the proceeds in equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares
issued is recognized as additional paid-in capital.

Treasury shares

Where the Bank purchases the Bank's shares, the consideration paid, including any attributable transaction costs, net
of income taxes, is deducted from total equity as treasury shares until they are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in equity. Treasury shares are stated
at weighted average cost.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity at the reporting date only if they are declared before or
on the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date or proposed or de-
clared after the reporting date but before the financial statements are authorized for issue.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position but are disclosed unless the possibility of
any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the statement of financial position but dis-
closed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interest and similar income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing securities classified as trading or availa-
ble-for-sale, interest income or expense is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into ac-
count all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or in-
cremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but
not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original effective interest
rate and the change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income or expense.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impair-
ment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the original effective interest rate applied to the new carry-
ing amount.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Recognition of income and expenses (continued)

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee and
commission income can be divided into the following two categories:

• Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include com-
mission income and asset management, custody and other management and advisory fees. Loan commitment fees for
loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together with any incremental costs)
and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan.

• Fee income from providing transaction services

Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party – such as the arrange-
ment of the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses – are recognized on comple-
tion of the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized
after fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

Dividend income

Revenue is recognized when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Belarusian rubles, which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency, converted at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Gains and losses resulting from the translation
of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as net gains/(losses) from foreign cur-
rencies - translation differences. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a transaction in a foreign currency and the NBRB exchange rate
on the date of the transaction are included in gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies. The official NBRB
exchange rates as of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 were BYR 9,510 and BYR 8,570 to 1 USD, respec-
tively.

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9, as issued, reflects two of the three phases of the IASB project on replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classi-
fication and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and hedge accounting. The standard has no man-
datory effective date and may be applied voluntarily. The adoption of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification
and measurement of the Bank’s financial assets but will have no impact on the classification and measurement of the
Bank’s financial liabilities. The Bank will quantify the effect when the remaining part of the standard containing guid-
ance on impairment of financial assets is issued.

Investment Entities (amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and provide an exception to
the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity under IFRS 10. The exception
to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. The amend-
ments are not expected to have any impact on the Bank, since the Bank has no companies that meet the definition of
an investment entity under IFRS 10.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities − Amendments to IAS 32
These amendments clarify the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off" and the criteria for non-
simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. These amendments are not expected to be relevant to the Bank.
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3. Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by
the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clari-
fies that no liability should be recognized before the specified minimum threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Bank does not expect that IFRIC 21 will have a material im-
pact on its financial statements.

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting – Amendments to IAS 39
These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a
hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014. The Bank has not novated its derivatives during the current reporting period. However, these amend-
ments would be considered for future novations.

4. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, Management has used its judgments and made estimates in
determining the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most significant judgments and estimates are as
follows:

Allowance for loan impairment

The Bank regularly reviews its loans and receivables to assess impairment. Judgment by management is required in
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. In estimating these
cash flows, the Bank makes judgments about the borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable value of collat-
eral. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in
future changes to the allowance.

Similarly, the Bank estimates changes in future cash flows based on the observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in the Bank, or national or local economic conditions that corre-
late with defaults on assets in the Bank. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the group of loans and receiva-
bles. The Bank uses its judgment to adjust observable data for a group of loans or receivables to reflect current cir-
cumstances.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of math-
ematical models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable prof-
its together with future tax planning strategies.

Useful lives of property and equipment

The Bank reviews useful lives of property and equipment at least at each financial year-end. If expectations differ from
previous estimates, changes are treated as changes in accounting estimates. These estimates may have a material
impact on the carrying amounts of property and equipment and on depreciation recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.
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5. Cash and cash equivalents

As of 31 December, cash and cash equivalents comprised:

2013 2012

Cash on hand 74,085 45,951
Current accounts with the NBRB 156,143 127,032
Current accounts with other credit institutions 16,401 20,888
Time deposits with credit institutions up to 90 days 20,997 6,589

Cash and cash equivalents 267,626 200,460

As of 31 December 2013, BYR 18,754 million (2012 – BYR 16,397 million) was placed on current accounts and inter-
bank deposits with six (2012 – seven) internationally recognized OECD banks, which are the main counterparties of the
Bank in performing international settlements.

6. Amounts due from credit institutions

As of 31 December, amounts due from credit institutions comprised:

2013 2012

Obligatory reserve with the NBRB 8,157 7,783
Guarantee deposits 954 –

Amounts due from credit institutions 9,111 7,783

Credit institutions are required to maintain a non-interest earning cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with the NBRB, the
amount of which depends on the level of funds attracted by the credit institution. The Bank’s ability to withdraw such
deposit is restricted by statutory legislation.

7. Derivative financial instruments

The Bank enters into derivative financial instruments. The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial in-
struments, recorded as assets or liabilities, together with their notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross,
is the amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the
value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the year
end and are not indicative of the credit risk.

2013 2012
Notional
amount

Fair values Notional
amount

Fair values
Asset Liability Asset Liability

Foreign exchange contracts
Swaps – foreign 86,634 170 – 8,683 2 5
Swaps – domestic 340,882 175,170 132 272,134 175,831 24
Total derivative as-

sets/liabilities 427,516 175,340 132 280,817 175,833 29

In the table above domestic contracts represent deals with Belarusian entities and foreign contracts represent deals
with counterparties which are non-Belarusian entities.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank has positions in swaps. Swaps are contractual agreements between two
parties to exchange movements in interest and foreign currency rates based on specified notional amounts.
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8. Loans to customers

As of 31 December, loans to customers comprised:
2013 2012

Corporate lending 626,217 462,357
Consumer lending 159,511 134,021
Net investment in finance leases 526 902
Gross loans to customers 786,254 597,280

Less: allowance for impairment (38,291) (40,225)

Loans to customers 747,963 557,055

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment of loans to customers by class is as follows:

Corporate lend-
ing

Consumer lend-
ing

Net investment
in finance leases Total

At 1 January 2013 34,907 5,309 9 40,225
Charge/(reversal) for the year (5,400) 10,111 40 4,751
Amounts written off (1,157) (555) – (1,712)
Hyperinflation effect (4,098) (874) (1) (4,973)

At 31 December 2013 24,252 13,991 48 38,291

Individual impairment 9,018 – – 9,018
Collective impairment 15,234 13,991 48 29,273

24,252 13,991 48 38,291

Gross amount of loans, individually
determined to be impaired, before
deducting any individually assessed
impairment allowance 123,801 – – 123,801

Corporate lend-
ing

Consumer lend-
ing

Net investment
in finance leases Total

At 1 January 2012 35,043 5,941 – 40,984
Charge for the year 7,601 726 9 8,336
Amounts written off (664) (158) – (822)
Hyperinflation effect (7,073) (1,200) – (8,273)

At 31 December 2012 34,907 5,309 9 40,225

Individual impairment 21,484 – – 21,484
Collective impairment 13,423 5,309 9 18,741

34,907 5,309 9 40,225

Gross amount of loans, individually
determined to be impaired, before
deducting any individually assessed
impairment allowance 188,149 – – 188,149

Individually impaired loans

Interest income accrued on loans, for which individual impairment allowances have been recognized, for the year end-
ed 31 December 2013, comprised BYR 30,606 million (2012: BYR 53,725 million).

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds relating to loans individually determined to be impaired at 31 December
2013 amounts to BYR 93,323 million (2012 - BYR 107,637 million).

Loans may be written off through the use of the allowance account in cases when it was determined that the probability
of repayment is remote upon the decision of the Credit Committee, which was approved by the Board of Directors.
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required by the Bank depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterpar-
ty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

• For corporate lending, charges over real estate properties, inventory and trade receivables;

• For consumer lending – surety, charges over residential properties and vehicles;

• For finance lease – usually no additional to the leased equipment collateral is obtained.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying
agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for
loan impairment.

Concentration of loans to customers

As of 31 December 2013, the Bank had a concentration of loans represented by BYR 293,624 million due from the ten
largest third party borrowers (39% of gross loan portfolio) (2012: BYR 217,923 million or 39% of gross loan portfolio).
An individual impairment allowance of BYR 7,486 million was recognized against these loans as of 31 December 2013
(2012: BYR 14,596 million).

During the years 2009-2011 the Bank issued construction loans to the employees working for one of its customers,
which is a related party to the Bank. The nominal loans issued as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 amounted to
BYR 20,046 million and BYR 18,382 million, respectively. The loans were issued with a maturity of up to 20 years bear-
ing interest of 4.75% per annum, which is much lower than market rate level for similar financial instruments. These
loans were issued using amounts received from this customer as deposits and placed in the Bank at an interest rate of
0.01% with maturity of 3 years, which is also much lower than market rate. Deposits with a nominal value of BYR
61,707 million as of 31 December 2012 were closed in 2013. In accordance with customer agreement at the date of
loan issue the balance between the deposit placed and loans issued by the Bank had to be not less than the estab-
lished ratio, moreover the client had no option to withdraw the placed deposit before expiry of a 3-year period The Bank
bears all credit risks in the event the loans issued will not be repaid. Loans issued and the deposit placed are initially
recognized at approximate fair value using corresponding discount methods and the effective interest rate method with
subsequent measurements at amortized cost. As of 31 December 2013 and 2012 the carrying amount of loans was
BYR 9,632 million and BYR 11,941 million respectively. The carrying amount of deposits was BYR 58,498 million as of
31 December 2012 and was repaid during 2013.

Loans have been extended to the following types of customers:

2013 2012

Legal entities 626,743 463,259
Individuals 159,511 134,021

786,254 597,280

Loans are made principally within Belarus in the following industry sectors:
2013 2012

Trade and catering 271,941 157,023
Individuals 159,511 134,021
Manufacturing 153,100 111,250
Transport 71,180 80,847
Leasing companies 30,051 49,713
Real estate construction 50,490 17,523
Agriculture 14,917 9,674
Real estate transactions 9,778 13,360
Individual entrepreneurs 3,207 3,887
Other 22,079 19,982

786,254 597,280

Less: allowance for impairment (38,291) (40,225)

Total loans to customers 747,963 557,055
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8. Loans to customers (continued)

Concentration of loans to customers (continued)

Loans to customers include finance lease receivables. The analysis of finance lease receivables is as follows:
2013 2012

Gross investment in finance leases receivable:
Not later than 1 year 466 615
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 363 896

829 1,511
Unearned future finance income on finance leases (303) (609)

Net investment in finance leases 526 902

2013 2012
Net investment in finance leases receivable:
Not later than 1 year 248 290
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 278 612

Net investment in finance leases 526 902

9. Assets held for sale

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, assets held for sale included property (primarily, real estate) transferred to the
Bank as repayment of loans in the amount of BYR 6,479 million and BYR 6,131 million, respectively. As of
31 December 2013, the Bank's management approved a plan to sell the property.  The Bank plans to complete the
sales of these assets in 2014.

10. Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale securities comprise:

2013 2012

Government bonds 38,335 –
Corporate bonds 10,995 6,226
Equity securities 58 58

Available-for-sale investments 49,388 6,284

11. Property and equipment

The movements in property and equipment were as follows:

Buildings and
structures Computers Motor vehicles

Office furniture
and other prop-
erty and equip-

ment

Assets
under construc-

tion Total
Cost
31 December 2012 70,331 18,636 4,218 31,510 3,331 128,026
Additions 208 3,307 – 1,409 59 4,983
Transfers 78 – – 356 (434) –
Disposals – (4) – (2,739) (153) (2,896)
31 December 2013 70,617 21,939 4,218 30,536 2,803 130,113

Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2012 6,296 12,733 2,020 16,061 – 37,110
Depreciation charge 1,512 1,166 520 4,072 – 7,270
Disposals – (4) – (2,726) – (2,730)
31 December 2013 7,808 13,895 2,540 17,407 – 41,650

Net book value:

31 December 2012 64,035 5,903 2,198 15,449 3,331 90,916

31 December 2013 62,809 8,044 1,678 13,129 2,803 88,463
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11. Property and equipment (continued)

Buildings and
structures Computers Motor vehicles

Office furniture
and other prop-
erty and equip-

ment

Assets
under construc-

tion Total
Cost
31 December 2011 66,175 18,380 4,218 31,540 4,871 125,184
Additions 5,281 1,070 – 1,137 424 7,912
Transfers 383 39 – 485 (907) –
Transfers to intangible

assets – – – – (1,057) (1,057)
Impairment (1,508) – – – – (1,508)
Disposals – (853) – (1,652) – (2,505)
31 December 2012 70,331 18,636 4,218 31,510 3,331 128,026

Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2011 4,863 10,916 1,495 15,195 – 32,469
Depreciation charge 1,433 2,668 525 2,497 – 7,123
Disposals – (851) – (1,631) – (2,482)
31 December 2012 6,296 12,733 2,020 16,061 – 37,110

Net book value:

31 December 2011 64,742 15,712 3,693 29,043 4,871 118,061

31 December 2012 64,035 5,903 2,198 15,449 3,331 90,916

As of 31 December 2013, the Bank had no equipment held under finance leases; in 2012, the carrying amount of
equipment held under finance leases was BYR 2,360 million.

12. Intangible assets
The movements in intangible assets were as follows:

Computer software
2013 2012

Cost
1 January 5,707 4,726
Additions 1,091 1,131
Transfers – 1,057
Disposals (976) (1,207)
31 December 5,822 5,707

Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2,549 2,131
Amortization charge 1,338 1,625
Disposals (952) (1,207)
31 December 2,935 2,549

Net book value:
1 January 3,158 2,595

31 December 2,887 3,158

13. Taxation
The corporate income tax expense comprises:

2013 2012

Current tax charge 10,027 5,306
Deferred tax credit — origination and reversal of temporary differences (11,515) –

Income tax (benefit)/expense (1,488) 5,306

The tax rate for banks for profits other than on government securities was 18% in 2013 and 2012.
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13. Taxation (continued)
The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory income tax rate. A reconciliation of the income tax expense
based on the statutory rate with actual is as follows:

2013 2012

Profit before income tax expense 18,052 50,397
Statutory tax rate 18% 18%
Theoretical income tax expense at the statutory rate 3,249 9,071

Tax exempt income (1,546) (1,792)
Non-deductible expenses:
- charity 138 –
- remuneration, bonuses and financial assistance to employees 767 1,406
- other 249 370
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets (10,365) (7,047)
Statutory revaluation (2,392) (5,498)
Hyperinflation effect 8,412 8,796

Income tax expense (1,488) 5,306

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December and their movements for the respective years comprise:

Origination and reversal
of temporary differences

Origination and reversal
of temporary differences

2011
In profit

for the year

In other
compre-
hensive
income

Hyperinfla-
tion effect 2012

In profit
for the year

In other
compre-
hensive
income

Hyperinfla-
tion effect 2013

Tax effect of deductible
temporary differences:

Property and equipment
and intangible assets 3,626 944 1,508 (513) 5,565 2,113 – (787) 6,891

Loans to customers 6,955 (501) – (984) 5,470 (2,096) – (774) 2,600
Other liabilities 1,117 (96) – (158) 863 (123) – (123) 617
Other assets (544) 771 – 76 303 551 – (43) 811
Available-for-sale invest-
ments 544 – (418) (77) 49 – – (8) 41

Deferred tax assets 11,698 1,118 1,090 (1,656) 12,250 445 – (1,735) 10,960

Tax effect of taxable
temporary differences:

Amounts due from banks
and other financial institu-
tions 165 (130) – (23) 12 104 – (1) 115

Amounts due to customers 2,660 (1,706) – (376) 578 (415) – (81) 82
Derivative financial instru-
ments (8,539) 8,626 – 1,208 1,295 (394) – (183) 718

Deferred tax liabilities (5,714) 6,790 – 809 1,885 (705) – (265) 915
Net deferred tax as-
sets/(liabilities) 17,412 (5,672) 1,090 (2,465) 10,365 1,150 – (1,470) 10,045

Unrecognized deferred tax
asset (17,412) 5,672 (1,090) 2,465 (10,365) 10,365 – – –

Net deferred tax asset – – – – – 11,515 – (1,470) 10,045

14. Allowance for impairment of other assets

The movements in allowance for impairment of other assets were as follows:
Other
assets

31 December 2011 –
Charge 759
Hyperinflation effect (59)
31 December 2012 700
Reversal (607)
Hyperinflation effect (93)

31 December 2013 –
Allowance for impairment of assets is deducted from the carrying amounts of the related assets.
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15. Other assets and liabilities
Other assets comprise:

2013 2012

Prepayments 1,799 3,346
Accrued income 1,698 791
Prepayments for property and equipment. 1,136 8
Taxes reimbursable, other than income tax 921 1,398
Materials 255 70
Other 929 1,827
Less: allowance for impairment of other assets – (700)

Other assets 6,738 6,740

Other liabilities comprise:
2013 2012

Settlements with employees 4,006 3,974
Settlements with other creditors 760 1,750
Taxes payable other than income tax 774 1,978
Dividends payable to shareholders of the Bank 16 25
Liabilities under finance lease agreements – 540
Deferred income 18 –
Other 1,631 1,489

Other liabilities 7,205 9,756

As of 31 December 2013, the Bank had no liabilities under finance lease agreements.

Liabilities under finance lease agreements as of 31 December 2012 are analyzed as follows:

Not later than
1 year

Later than 1 year
and not later than

5 years Total

Minimum lease payments 510 373 883
Future finance costs (190) (153) (343)

Net liabilities under finance lease agreements 320 220 540

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, other financial assets included investments in associates disclosed below:

Associate
Ownership

interest
31 December

2013
Ownership

interest
31 December

2012

LLC "Investment Company Paritet" – – 50% 83

The associate was accounted for under the equity method. Total unrecognized share of the Bank in the associate's
loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to BYR 2,388 million. As of 31 December 2012, unrecognized
share of the Bank in the associate's accumulated loss amounted to BYR 4,758 million (cumulative total). In 2013, the
Bank derecognized investments in the associate and included the respective amounts in line "Other operating ex-
pense".

16. Amounts due to credit institutions
As of 31 December, amounts due to credit institutions comprise:

2013 2012

Current accounts 176 2,059
Time deposits 103,676 14,529

Amounts due to credit institutions 103,852 16,588

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, amounts due to banks included funds of BYR 63,910 million (62% of the total bal-
ance) received from one bank and funds of BYR 16,405 million (99% of the total balance) received from two banks,
respectively.
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17. Amounts due to customers

As of 31 December, amounts due to customers comprise:
2013 2012

Current accounts 87,645 124,953
Time deposits 683,693 593,556

Amounts due to customers 771,338 718,509

As of 31 December 2013, amounts due to customers of BYR 127,885 million (17%) were due to the ten largest cus-
tomers (2012 – BYR 145,858 million (20%)).

As of 31 December 2013, included in time deposits are deposits of individuals in the amount of BYR 521,117 million
(2012 – BYR 465,721 million). In accordance with the Belarusian Banking Code, the Bank is obliged to repay such de-
posits upon demand of a depositor within 5 days. In case a time deposit is repaid upon demand of a depositor prior to
maturity, interest on it is paid based on the interest rate for demand deposits, unless a different interest rate is specified
in the agreement.

Amounts due to customers include accounts of the following types of customers:
2013 2012

State organizations 86,433 86,789
Private enterprises 131,618 132,105
Individuals 553,287 499,615

Amounts due to customers 771,338 718,509

An analysis of customer accounts by economic sector is as follows:
2013 2012

Individuals 553,287 499,615
Insurance 111,369 29,853
Trade 29,121 35,727
Commerce 27,334 17,745
Manufacturing 12,174 67,256
Health care 10,719 17,093
Culture and arts 7,893 –
Construction 6,618 8,336
Transport and communication 4,110 4,557
Public organizations 4,027 1,224
Chemical 2,713 –
Agriculture 1,325 1,490
Consulting 16 22,766
Real estate 6 5,938
Other 626 6,909

Amounts due to customers 771,338 718,509

18. Equity

Share capital

Movements in shares outstanding, issued and fully paid were as follows:

Number of
shares

Nominal
amount Inflation ad-

justment TotalPreferred Ordinary Preferred Ordinary

31 December 2011 18,838,294 31,103,973,440 57 93,312 693,708 787,077
Increase in share capital – 28,333,333,333 – 85,000 14,686 99,686

31 December 2012 18,838,294 59,437,306,773 57 178,312 708,394 886,763
Increase in share capital – 50,000,000,000 – 150,000 – 150,000

31 December 2013 18,838,294 109,437,306,773 57 328,312 708,394 1,036,763
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18. Equity (continued)

Share capital (continued)

As of 31 December 2012 and 2013, according to the Bank's Charter, the authorized and fully paid share capital com-
prised 59,456,145,067 and 109,456,145,067 shares with a par value of BYR 3 each (at historical value).

In December 2013, the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus contributed BYR 150,000 million (in nominal terms) to
the Bank's share capital. The nominal amount of shares of OJSC "Paritetbank" remained unchanged at BYR 3.

The share capital of the Bank was contributed by the shareholders in Belarusian rubles. Shareholders are entitled to
dividends in Belarusian rubles.

In 2013, the Bank declared dividends in the total amount of BYR 1,317 million (2012 - BYR 1,023 million).

In accordance with Belarusian legislation, dividends may only be declared to the shareholders of the Bank from re-
tained and unreserved earnings as shown in the Bank's financial statements prepared in accordance with BAS. As of
31 December 2013, retained and unreserved earnings comprised BYR 73,116 million (2012 - BYR 44,994 million (not
hyperinflated)).

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale investment securities

This reserve records fair value changes of available-for-sale investments.

19. Commitments and contingencies

Operating environment

As an emerging market, the Republic of Belarus does not possess a well-developed business and regulatory infrastruc-
ture that would generally exist in more mature market economies. The Belarusian economy continues to display char-
acteristics typical of an economy in transition. These characteristics include, but are not limited to, low levels of liquidity
in the capital markets, relatively high inflation and the existence of currency controls which cause the national currency
to be illiquid outside of Belarus. The stability of the Belarusian economy is largely dependent upon the progress of re-
forms and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government.

In 2011, Belarus experienced significant deterioration of the macroeconomic situation. The deterioration was primarily
due to the high current account deficit, decrease in, and restriction on, external financing sources, and significant
shortage of foreign currency inflow at the beginning of 2011. This led to significant decrease in international reserves of
the National Bank in Q1 2011 and foreign currency deficit and a significant decrease in the official exchange rate ac-
companied by development of inflation and an increase in the basic refinancing rate up to 45% as of 31 December
2011. The rate of inflation in 2011 was 108.7% (Note 2).

The significant financial support provided by Russia (extension of loans in 2011 and 2012 and participation in privatiza-
tion of state assets at the end of 2011) and a positive foreign trade balance contributed to a significant increase in re-
serves of the National Bank and stabilization of the macroeconomic situation in the country in 2012. According to the
Government and the National Bank, the reserves as of 31 December 2012 are sufficient and stable enough to avoid
foreign currency shortages and to satisfy the external financing needs of the country in the short and medium term. In
2012, there were no significant changes in the official exchange rate. In 2012, the inflation rate was 21.8%, the basic
refinancing rate reduced to 30% as of 31 December 2012.

The year 2013 demonstrated obvious signs of stabilization of the macroeconomic situation as compared to 2012. Infla-
tion rate dropped to 16.5% in 2013. As of 31 December 2013, the basic refinancing rate was reduced to 23.5%. The
GDP grew by 0.9% in 2013. In the second half of 2013 the banking system faced liquidity crisis resulting in increased
Belarusian ruble rates at resource market as compared to the beginning of 2013. In the first half of 2013, the official
exchange rate of the Belarusian ruble was relatively stable, however, gradual weakening of Belarusian ruble against
major currencies started in June. In December 2013 Russia provided additional credit support amounting to USD 2
billion. The first tranche of USD 440 million was provided at the end of December, which had stabilizing effect on fur-
ther exchange rates determination at the year end.
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19. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Operating environment (continued)

While management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the Bank's business in the
current circumstances, unexpected further deterioration in the areas described above could negatively affect the results
and financial position of the Bank and its borrowers. The impact on the Bank's financial statements is not currently de-
terminable.

Legal

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management believes that the
ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position or the results of future operations of the Bank.

Taxation

Belarusian legislation and regulations regarding taxation and other operational matters, including currency exchange
control and custom regulations, continue to evolve. Legislation and regulations are not always clearly written and are
subject to varying interpretations by local, regional and national authorities, and other governmental bodies. Instances
of inconsistent interpretations are not unusual. At the same time there is a risk that transactions and interpretations that
have not been challenged in the past may be challenged by the authorities in the future. Fiscal periods remain open to
review by the authorities in respect of taxes for an indefinite period. These facts create tax risks in Belarus substantially
more significant than typically found in countries with more developed tax systems, although this risk diminishes with
the passage of time. It is not practical to determine the amount of unasserted claims, if any, that may arise or the likeli-
hood of any unfavorable outcome.

As of 31 December 2013, management of the Bank believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appro-
priate and that the Bank’s tax, currency and customs positions will be sustained.

Commitments and contingencies

As of 31 December, the Bank's commitments and contingencies comprise:

2013 2012
Credit related commitments
Undrawn loan commitments 29,378 45,267
Guarantees issued 8,756 1,055
Letters of credit 1,363 1,860

39,497 48,182
Operating lease commitments
Not later than 1 year 133 161
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 243 127
Later than 5 years 38 66

414 354

Commitments and contingencies (before deducting collateral) 39,911 48,536
Less: Cash held as security against letters of credit and guarantees (7,931) (4,037)

Commitments and contingencies 31,980 44,499
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20. Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income comprises:
2013 2012

Settlement operations 23,837 20,991
Currency conversion operations 3,255 3,672
Fee and commission income 27,092 24,663

Settlement operations 3,396 5,027
Currency conversion operations 150 164
Other 664 271
Fee and commission expense 4,210 5,462

Net fee and commission income 22,882 19,201

21. Other income

Other income comprises:
2013 2012

Fines and penalties received 4,311 2,651
Income from debt write-off 680 1,090
Income from operating leases 127 131
Income from sale of other assets 261 5,619
Other income 1,049 645

Total other income 6,428 10,136

22. Personnel and other operating expenses

Personnel and other operating expenses comprise:

2013 2012

Salaries and bonuses 39,283 40,850
Social security costs 12,325 12,462

Personnel expenses 51,608 53,312

Payments to individuals deposits insurance fund 6,723 6,533
Occupancy and rent 5,078 5,302
Software maintenance 4,160 3,337
Repair and maintenance of property and equipment 4,030 3,490
Services of automated interbank settlement system 3,653 2,250
Operating taxes 3,134 3,879
Communications 2,518 2,690
Utilities 2,281 2,382
Security 2,183 2,515
Legal, audit and consulting services 1,940 2,175
Transportation 1,563 772
Office supplies 1,044 584
Charity 772 –
Marketing and advertising 671 1,514
Business travel and related 591 489
Losses on disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets 58 75
Loss on impairment of property and equipment – 1,507
Other 5,389 6,304

Other operating expenses 45,788 45,798

As of 31 December 2013, loss on derecognition of investments in the associate in the amount of BYR 83 million is in-
cluded in line "Other".
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23. Risk management

Introduction

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities. The Bank manages its risks through a process of ongoing identification, meas-
urement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other internal controls. This process of risk management is critical to
the Bank's continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to
his or her responsibilities. The Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being subdivided
into trading and non-trading risks. It is also subject to operating risks.

The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment, technology
and industry. They are monitored through the Bank's strategic planning process.

Risk management structure

The Supervisory Board is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks; however, there are separate inde-
pendent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk strategies
and principles.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee headed by the Independent Director is responsible for monitoring of the risk management strategy
implementation and execution of decisions adopted by the Bank's Supervisory Board with regard to the Bank's risk
profile and risk tolerance, assessing the effectiveness of the Bank's risk management system and providing complex
solutions to issues related to the analysis of key banking risks and development of the relevant risk management poli-
cies.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee headed by the Independent Director is responsible for overall management and effective func-
tioning of internal control system, internal audit function of the Bank and selection of and cooperation with audit firms.

Management Board

The Management Board has the responsibility for the development of the risk management strategy and policies, im-
plementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Management Board is responsible for the fundamental risk
issues and manages and monitors relevant risk decisions.

Financial Committee

The Financial Committee's objective is to implement uniform financial policies for financial resource management for
the purpose of securing regular growth of the Bank's revenue and enhancing efficiency of financial resources used.

Assets and Liabilities Committee

The major objective of ALCO is to ensure the strategic management of the Bank's assets and liabilities in the medium
and long term in order to maximize profit and minimize risks, whilst at the same time following prudential ratios and
statutory legislation requirements.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for complex credit risk management, coordinates the activities of the Bank’s divi-
sions in the field of credit risk management in order to reach the optimal balance of credit risks and yields.

Risk controlling department

The department performs qualitative and quantitative assessment of banking risks, provides analytical and methodo-
logical support in analyzing and managing risks, informs the Bank's management bodies on the level of assumed risks.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Introduction (continued)

Bank Treasury

Treasury is responsible for managing the Bank’s assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also pri-
marily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Bank.

Internal audit

Risk management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually by the audit function that examines both the
adequacy of the procedures and the Bank’s compliance with the procedures. The audit function discusses the results
of all assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Bank's Audit Committee
and Supervisory Board.

Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Bank’s risks are measured using various risk measurement tools: scenario methods which allow assessing the
level of risk in various case scenarios, client risk assessments, stress-testing and other.

Monitoring and controlling risks are primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank. These limits reflect
the business strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is willing to accept.
In addition, the Bank monitors and measures the overall risk bearing capacity while performing calculations of capital
adequacy and other prudential regulations.

Information compiled from all the businesses is examined and processed in order to analyze, control and identify early
risks. This information is presented and explained to the Supervisory Board, the Management Board, the Assets and
Liabilities Committee and the Financial and Credit Committees (within their competence). The reports include aggre-
gate credit exposure, liquidity ratios, levels of operational and currency risk, and risk profile changes. The appropriate-
ness of the allowance for credit losses is assessed on a monthly basis. On a quarterly basis, the Supervisory Board
receives a report on Bank’s implementation of Strategic development plan that provides the information about perfor-
mance and financial result.

Risk mitigation

As part of its overall risk management, the Bank uses the system of measures and limits stipulated by local statutory
requirements to manage exposures resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign currencies, credit risks, and expo-
sures arising from forecast transactions.

The Bank actively uses collateral to reduce its credit risks (see above for more detail).

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the
same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obliga-
tions to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risks, the Bank’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accord-
ingly.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties failed to discharge
their contractual obligations.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk control in relation to borrowers (other than banks acting as counterparties to the Bank) includes the follow-
ing:

• monitoring of issued credit instruments by the corresponding structural units of the Bank;

• classification of assets and contingent liabilities, and creation of special allowances for covering possible losses
in relation to assets and contingent liabilities;

• control over customers' fulfillment of conditions upon credit and similar agreements which is performed by De-
partment for Corporate Business.

Control of the accepted credit risk level in relation to amounts placed within banks acting as counteragents to the Bank
includes the following:

• analysis of negative financial and non-financial information while applying previously set limits (performed by the
risk controlling department);

• routine and subsequent control over compliance with the set limits (sub-limits) for banks acting as counterpar-
ties to the Bank by executive units – units directly operating within the set limits (sub-limits).

The results of analysis serve as a basis for developing suggestions to units working with customers with regard to rec-
ommended parameters for clients attracted for credit services. Additional parameters limiting portfolio concentration of
the Bank can be developed based on the analysis of the portfolio.

All activities performed by credit units of the Bank in the course of monitoring of current loans are aimed at identifying
problems at the earliest stage possible.

The Bank has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the cre-
ditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Credit risk classification system provides assign-
ing a risk rating to each counterparty. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision.

The credit quality control system allows the Bank to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is ex-
posed and take necessary action.

The Bank receives collateral and guarantees from entities and individuals in relation to most loans, however, a certain
part of lending is attributable to loans to individuals in regard to which obtaining collateral or guarantee is impracticable.
Such risks are monitored on a regular basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position, including derivatives,
before the effect of mitigation through the use of master netting and collateral agreements, is best represented by their
carrying amounts.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the carrying value represents the current credit risk exposure
but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instrument, references shall be made
to the specific notes. The effect of collateral and other risk mitigation techniques is shown in Note 8.

Credit-related commitments risks

The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees which may require that the Bank make payments on their be-
half. Such payments are collected from customers based on the terms of the guarantee. They expose the Bank to simi-
lar risks to loans and these are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Bank using internal credit ratings. The table below shows the
credit quality by class of asset for loan-related lines of the statement of financial position, based on the Bank’s credit
rating system.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

High grade includes the Bank’s highest quality financial assets. The possibility of deterioration is generally considered
remote. Financial performance has been strong and good. All factors are favorable and participation potential or ability
to refinance is considered good. Financial history shows good liquidity and cash flow with good basic trends, or the
company may be new with insufficient financial history to develop a trend. Refinancing at another institution or else-
where on short notice, even in adverse economic conditions, could likely be accomplished.

Standard grade includes good quality financial assets. The possibility of deterioration is generally considered remote
but there is some amount of uncertainty. These assets are neither overdue nor any other significant signs of impair-
ment are identified. Financial performance has been strong and good but it can deteriorate as a result of some possible
factors in the future. Financial history shows good liquidity and cash flow with good basic trends, or the company may
be new with insufficient financial history to develop a trend. Refinancing at another institution or elsewhere on short
notice, even in adverse economic conditions, could likely be accomplished.

Substandard grade includes normal quality financial assets. The possibility of deterioration exists and there is identifi-
able amount of uncertainty. These assets are not overdue yet but some insignificant signs of impairment are identified.
Financial performance has been strong and good but there is a likelihood that it can deteriorate as a result of some
probable factors in the future. Financial history generally shows good liquidity and cash flow with good basic trends,
however some overdue amounts could happen in the past or the company may be new with insufficient financial history
to develop a trend. Refinancing at another institution or elsewhere on short notice, even in adverse economic condi-
tions, could likely be accomplished.

Notes

Neither past due nor individually impaired Past due but
not individual-

ly impaired
2013 Individually

impaired 2013
Total
2013

High grade
2013

Standard
grade
2013

Sub-standard
grade
2013

Amounts due from credit
institutions 6 – 9,111 – – – 9,111

Loans to customers: 8
Corporate lending – 502,044 – 898 123,801 626,743
Consumer lending – 151,258 – 8,253 – 159,511
Available-for-sale investments – 49,388 – – – 49,388

Total – 711,801 – 9,151 123,801 844,753

Notes

Neither past due nor individually impaired Past due but
not individual-

ly impaired
2012 Individually

impaired 2012
Total
2012

High grade
2012

Standard
grade
2012

Sub-standard
grade
2012

Amounts due from credit
institutions 6 – 7,783 – – – 7,783

Loans to customers: 8
Corporate lending – 271,616 – 3,494 188,149 463,259
Consumer lending – 133,434 – 587 – 134,021
Available-for-sale investments – 6,284 – – – 6,284

Total – 419,117 – 4,081 188,149 611,347
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23. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2013, the Bank had BYR 9,151 million of past due loans which were considered to be unimpaired
(2012: BYR 4,081 million). The ageing analysis of past due but not impaired loans per class of financial assets is pro-
vided below:

Less than
30 days

2013
31 to 60 days

2013
61 to 90 days

2013

More than 90
days
2013

Total
2013

Loans to customers:
Corporate lending 645 253 – – 898
Consumer lending 3,695 1,745 517 2,296 8,253

Total 4,340 1,998 517 2,296 9,151

Less than
30 days

2012
31 to 60 days

2012
61 to 90 days

2012

More than 90
days
2012

Total
2012

Loans to customers:
Corporate lending 384 299 939 1,872 3,494
Consumer lending 33 13 494 47 587

Total 417 312 1,433 1,919 4,081

It is the Bank’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio. This facilitates focused
management of the applicable risks and the comparison of credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic
regions and products. The rating system is supported by a variety of financial analytics, combined with processed mar-
ket information to provide the main inputs for the measurement of counterparty risk. All internal risk ratings are tailored
to the various categories and are derived in accordance with the Bank’s rating policy. The attributable risk ratings are
assessed and updated regularly.

See Note 8 for more detailed information with respect to the allowance for impairment of loans to customers.

Impairment assessment

The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal or interest are
overdue by more than 90 days or there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of counterparties, credit rating
downgrades, or infringement of the original terms of the contract. The Bank addresses impairment assessment in two
areas: individually assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances.

Individually assessed allowances

The Bank determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant loan on an individual basis. Items
considered when determining allowance amounts include the sustainability of the counterparty's business plan, its abil-
ity to improve performance once a financial difficulty has arisen, projected receipts and the expected dividend payout
should bankruptcy ensue, the availability of financial support, the realizable value of collateral, and the timing of the
expected cash flows. The impairment losses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless unforeseen circumstances
require more careful attention.

Collectively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans to customers that are not individually significant (including
credit cards and consumer lending) and for individually significant loans where there is not yet objective evidence of
individual impairment. Allowances are evaluated at each reporting date with each portfolio receiving a separate review.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The collective assessment takes account of impairment that is likely to be present in the portfolio even though there is
no yet objective evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking
into consideration the following information: historical losses on the portfolio, current economic conditions, the appro-
priate delay between the time a loss is likely to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requiring an indi-
vidually assessed impairment allowance, and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired. Local management is
responsible for deciding the length of this period which can extend for as long as one year. The impairment allowance
is then reviewed by credit management to ensure alignment with the Bank's overall policy.

Financial guarantees are assessed and provision made in a similar manner as for loans.

The geographical concentration of Bank’s monetary assets and liabilities is set out below:

2013 2012

Belarus OECD

CIS and
other

countries Total Belarus OECD

CIS and
other

countries Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equiva-

lents 245,624 18,754 3,248 267,626 182,150 15,106 3,204 200,460
Amounts due from credit

institutions 9,111 – – 9,111 7,783 – – 7,783
Derivative financial assets 175,170 – 170 175,340 175,833 – – 175,833
Loans to customers 747,963 – – 747,963 556,107 948 – 557,055
Available-for-sale invest-

ments 49,388 – 49,388 6,284 – – 6,284
Other assets 5,224 – – 5,224 3,461 – – 3,461

1,232,480 18,754 3,418 1,254,652 931,618 16,054 3,204 950,876

Liabilities:
Amounts due to credit

institutions 99,060 4 4,788 103,852 22 – 16,566 16,588
Derivative financial

liabilities – – 132 132 29 – – 29
Amounts due to custom-

ers 771,338 – – 771,338 717,666 498 345 718,509
Other liabilities 6,307 – – 6,307 6,768 – – 6,768

876,705 4 4,920 881,629 724,485 498 16,911 741,894

Net assets and liabilities 355,775 18,750 (1,502) 373,023 207,133 15,556 (13,707) 208,982

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal
and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its
existing core deposit base, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a dai-
ly basis.

This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be
used to secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption of cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit that it can assess to meet liquidity
needs. In addition, the Bank maintains a cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with the NBRB, the amount of which de-
pends on the level of customer funds attracted.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

The liquidity position is assessed and managed by the Bank primarily on a standalone basis, based on certain liquidity
ratios established by the NBRB. As of 31 December, these ratios were as follows:

Normative, % 2013
%

2012
%

"Instant Liquidity Ratio" (assets receivable or realizable within
one day / liabilities repayable on demand) 20 5 6

"Current Liquidity Ratio" (assets receivable or realizable within 30
days / liabilities repayable within 30 days) 70 1,984 1,654

"Short-Term Liquidity Ratio" (assets receivable within a year /
liabilities repayable within a year) 100 233 387

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Bank's financial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given
immediately. However, the Bank expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date the Bank
could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by the Bank’s deposit reten-
tion history.

Financial liabilities
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5 years
Over

5 years Total

As of 31 December 2013
Amounts due to credit institutions 569 746 104,703 – 106,018
Derivative financial instruments
- Contractual amounts payable 172,205 – – 84,609 256,814
- Contractual amounts receivable 172,471 – – 255,045 427,516
Amounts due to customers 236,935 276,217 365,633 35 878,820
Other liabilities 4,528 11 64 – 4,603

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 586,708 276,974 470,400 339,689 1,673,771

Financial liabilities
Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5 years
Over

5 years Total

As of 31 December 2012
Amounts due to credit institutions 14,532 – – – 14,532
Derivative financial instruments
- Contractual amounts payable 15,286 – – 98,540 113,826
- Contractual amounts receivable 15,263 – – 265,555 280,818
Amounts due to customers 193,576 208,286 345,799 9 747,670
Other liabilities 406 103 373 – 882

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 239,063 208,389 346,172 364,104 1,157,728

The table below shows the contractual maturity of the Bank's commitments and contingencies.

Less than
3 months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5 years
Over

5 years Total

2013 2,967 28,457 8,073 – 39,497
2012 48,182 – – – 48,182



Translation from original in Russian

OJSC "Paritetbank" Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
(in millions of Belarusian rubles in terms of the purchasing power of the Belarusian ruble
as at 31 December 2013)

37

23. Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk and funding management (continued)

The Bank expects that not all of the contingent liabilities or commitments will be drawn before expiry of the commit-
ments.

The maturity analysis does not reflect the historical stability of current accounts. Their liquidation has historically taken
place over a longer period than indicated in the tables above. These balances are included in amounts due in less than
three months in the tables above.

Term deposits of individuals are included in amounts due to customers. In accordance with the Belarusian legislation,
the Bank is obliged to repay such deposits within 5 days upon demand of a depositor.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchanges, and equity prices. The exposures to market risk are man-
aged and monitored using different sensitivity analysis techniques. Except for the concentrations within foreign curren-
cy, the Bank has no significant concentration of market risk

Market risk – non-trading

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other varia-
bles held constant, of the Bank’s statement of comprehensive income.

The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the
net interest income for one year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at
31 December.

Increase in basis points
Sensitivity of net interest

income Sensitivity of equity
Currency 2013 2013 2013
BYR 18,680 36,148 –
USD/EUR 500 (8,259) –

Decrease in basis points
Sensitivity of net interest

income Sensitivity of equity
Currency 2013 2013 2013
BYR (18,680) (41,556) –
USD/EUR (500) 11,236 –

Increase in basis points
Sensitivity of net interest

income Sensitivity of equity
Currency 2012 2012 2012
BYR 500 14,989 64
USD/EUR 500 – –

Decrease in basis points
Sensitivity of net interest

income Sensitivity of equity
Currency 2012 2012 2012
BYR (500) (14,989) (64)
USD/EUR (500) – –
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23. Risk management (continued)

Market risk – non-trading (continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Management Board has set limits on positions by currency based on the NBRB regulations. Positions are moni-
tored by Risk controlling department on a daily basis.

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Bank had significant exposure at 31 December 2013 on its non-
trading monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement of the currency rate against the BYR, with all other variables held constant on the statement of
comprehensive income (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). The
effect on equity does not differ from the effect on the statement of comprehensive income. A negative amount in the
table reflects a potential net reduction in statement of comprehensive income and equity, while a positive amount re-
flects a net potential increase.

Currency

Change in currency
rate
 in %
2013

Effect on profit
before tax

2013

Change in currency
rate
 in %
2012

Effect on profit
before tax

2012

USD/BYR 32 (10,992) 10 1,833
EUR/BYR 34 (3,156) 10 508
RUR/BYR 48 298 10 56
USD/BYR (32) 10,992 (10) (1,833)
EUR/BYR (34) 3,156 (10) (508)
RUR/BYR (48) (298) (10) (56)

Prepayment risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or
request repayment earlier or later than expected, such as fixed rate mortgages when interest rates fall. As of
31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank had no instruments exposed to such risk.

Operational risk

Operating risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail
to perform, operating risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial
loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but a control framework, and monitoring and responding
to potential risks could be effective tools to manage the risks. Controls should include effective segregation of duties,
access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of
internal audit. The Bank has insured major part of property and equipment to mitigate risks.

24. Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

• Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

• Level 2: techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly;

• Level 3: valuation techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are
not based on observable market data.
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24. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

31 December 2013 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 170 175,170 175,340
Available-for-sale investments 49,388 - 49,388

49,558 175,170 224,728
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (132) – (132)

(132) – (132)

31 December 2012 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments  - 175,833 175,833
Available-for-sale investments 6,284 - 6,284

6,284 175,833 182,117
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (29) – (29)

(29) – (29)

Financial instruments recorded at fair value

The following is a description of the determination of fair value for financial instruments which are recorded at fair value
using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Bank’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would
make when valuing the instruments.

Derivatives

Derivatives valued using a valuation technique with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate swaps, currency
swaps. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include swap models, using present value calculations. The
models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves.

Derivatives valued using a valuation technique with significant non-market observable inputs are primarily long dated
currency swaps with the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus. These derivatives are valued using the discounting
cash flows model. The model incorporates various non-observable assumptions, which include market rate volatilities.

Movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities
which are recorded at fair value:

Balance at
1 January 2013

Transfers from
level 2

Gains/
losses recog-
nized in state-

ment of profit or
loss

Hyperinflation
effect

Balance at
31 December

2013

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 175,833 – 26,175 (26,838) 175,170

Total level 3 financial assets 175,833 – 26,175 (26,838) 175,170
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24. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Balance at
1 January 2012

Transfers from
level 2

Gains/
losses recog-
nized in state-

ment of profit or
loss

Hyperinflation
effect

Balance at
31 December

2012

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 276,468 – 52,326 (152,961) 175,833

Total level 3 financial assets 276,468 – 52,326 (152,961) 175,833

Gains or losses on level 3 financial instruments included in other comprehensive income for the period comprise:

2013 2012
Realized

gains
Unrealized

gains Total
Realized

gains
Unrealized

gains Total
Total gain included in the prof-

it/loss for the period  – 26,175 26,175  – 52,326 52,326

Significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair
value to changes to key assumptions

The data used for fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments was as follows: for the USD - denominat-
ed part in 2013 the Bank used yield-to maturity of the Belarusian Eurobonds which was equal to 7.495% (in 2012 the
Bank used the rate of 7.764%); for the EUR - denominated part of the instrument in 2013 the Bank used yield-to ma-
turity of the Belarusian Eurobonds which was equal to 7.495% and adjusted for the difference between EURIBOR and
LIBOR (-0,271%), at the reporting date in 2012 the Bank applied the rate which was equal to 7.3605%. For the BYR-
denominated part of the instrument the Bank used the internal borrowing rate of 36.4% in 2013 and of 39% in 2012.

Significant unobservable inputs and the sensitivity of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value to changes to
key assumptions

The following table shows the impact on the fair value of level 3 instruments of using reasonably possible alternative
assumptions:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Carrying amount

Effect of reasona-
bly possible alter-

native assump-
tions Carrying amount

Effect of reasona-
bly possible alter-

native assump-
tions

Financial assets
Derivative financial instru-

ments 175,170 (677) 175,833 (804)

In order to determine reasonably possible alternative assumptions the Bank adjusted key unobservable model inputs
as follows: the Bank adjusted the interest rate used to calculate discounted cash inflows in Belarusian rubles. The ad-
justment made was to decrease the interest rate used by 100 basis points.

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments that
are carried in the financial statements. The table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-
financial liabilities. Fair value of financial instruments was measured using significant observable inputs (level 2).
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24. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Carrying
amount

2013
Fair value

2013

Unrecognized
gain/(loss)

2013

Carrying
amount

2012
Fair value

2012

Unrecognized
gain/(loss)

2012
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 267,626 267,626 – 200,460 200,460 –
Amounts due from credit

institutions 9,111 9,111 – 7,783 7,783 –
Loans to customers 747,963 725,011 (22,952) 557,055 546,332 (10,723)

Financial liabilities
Amounts due to credit insti-

tutions 103,852 103,852 – 16,588 16,588 –
Amounts due to customers 771,338 767,645 3,693 718,509 712,286 6,223
Total unrecognized

change in unrealized
fair value (19,259) (4,500)

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial instru-
ments which are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements.

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying amount

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or have a short term maturity (less than three months) it is
assumed that the carrying amounts approximate their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits,
savings accounts without a specific maturity and variable rate financial instruments.

Fixed rate financial instruments

The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost are estimated by comparing market
interest rates when they were first recognized with current market rates offered for similar financial instruments. The
estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and maturity.
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25. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or
settled. See Note 23 “Risk management” for the Bank’s contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

2013 2012
Within one

year
More than
one year Total

Within one
year

More than
one year Total

Cash and cash equivalents 267,626 – 267,626 200,460 – 200,460
Amounts due from credit institu-

tions – 9,111 9,111 – 7,783 7,783
Derivative financial assets 170 175,170 175,340 2 175,831 175,833
Loans to customers 262,821 485,142 747,963 320,267 236,788 557,055
Assets held for sale 6,479 – 6,479 6,131 – 6,131
Available-for-sale investments 4,942 44,446 49,388 119 6,165 6,284
Property and equipment – 88,463 88,463 – 90,916 90,916
Intangible assets – 2,887 2,887 – 3,158 3,158
Current income tax assets – – – – 170 170
Deferred income tax assets – 10,045 10,045 – – –
Other assets 6,491 247 6,738 6,402 338 6,740
Total 548,529 815,511 1,364,040 533,381 521,149 1,054,530

Amounts due to credit institutions 1,131 102,721 103,852 16,588 – 16,588
Derivative financial liabilities 132 – 132 29 – 29
Amounts due to customers 449,312 322,026 771,338 396,641 321,868 718,509
Deferred income tax liabilities 3,787 – 3,787 – – –
Other liabilities 7,137 68 7,205 9,536 220 9,756
Total 461,499 424,815 886,314 422,794 322,088 744,882

Net position 87,030 390,696 477,726 110,587 199,061 309,648

26. Related party disclosures

In accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form.

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not. Transactions between related parties
may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between unrelated parties.

The Republic of Belarus controls the Bank's activities through the National Bank of the Republic of Belarus.

The Republic of Belarus, acting through state agencies and other institutions, directly and indirectly controls and signifi-
cantly influences a large number of entities (collectively referred to as "state-related entities"). The Bank performs the
following banking transactions with these entities: lending, attracting deposits, cash and settlement operations, ex-
change operations, providing guarantees, and transactions with securities and derivatives. Transactions with state-
related entities constitute a significant part of the Bank's operations.
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26. Related party disclosures (continued)

The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and related expense and income for
the year are as follows:

2013 2012

NBRB

Key man-
agement

personnel
Other related

parties NBRB

Key man-
agement

personnel
Other related

parties
Cash and cash equivalents 156,143 – – 127,032 – –
Amounts due from credit institu-

tions 8,157 – 4,489 7,783 – 574
Loans outstanding at 1 January – 1,133 119,998 – 679 431,422

Loans outstanding at
31 December – 1,168 104,847 – 1,133 119,998

Less: allowance for impairment at
31 December – (73) (1,743) – (30) (6,736)

Loans outstanding at
31 December, net – 1,095 103,104 – 1,103 113,262

Available-for-sale investments – – 42,689 – – –
Derivative financial assets 175,170 – – 175,831 – –

Amounts due to customers at 1
January – 7,575 88,710 – 7 247,841

Amounts due to customers at
31 December – 4,879 96,239 – 7,575 88,710

Amounts due to credit institu-
tions – – – – – –

Commitments and guarantees
issued – 183 87 – 340 5,059

2013 2012

NBRB

Key man-
agement

personnel
Other related

parties NBRB

Key man-
agement

personnel
Other related

parties

Interest income on loans to cus-
tomers – 361 33,045 – 217 43,955

Impairment charge for loans – (43) 4,993 – 28 (10,354)
Interest expense on deposits – 733 6,536 – 864 15,670
Interest income on available-for-

sale investments – – 5,112 – – –
Fee and commission income – 13 250 – 1 709
Other income – – 32 – – 232
Fee and commission expense – – – – –
Other operating expenses – – 895 – – 8,540

Compensation to key management personnel comprises the following:

2013 2012

Salaries and other short-term benefits 7,032 7,523
Social security costs 1,067 979

Total key management personnel compensation 8,099 8,502
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27. Capital adequacy

The Bank maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of the
Bank’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the ratios established by the ratios established by the NBRB
in supervising the Bank and the Basel Capital Accord 1988.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank complied with all externally imposed capital requirements.

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximize shareholders’ value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.

NBRB capital adequacy ratio

The NBRB requires banks to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 8% of risk-weighted assets, computed
based on stand-alone BAS basis. As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio on this basis
was as follows:

2013 2012

Main capital 383,749 252,315
Additional capital 126,907 111,459

Total capital 510,656 363,774

Risk weighted assets 1,217,460 885,057
Risk-weighted off-balance commitments and contingencies 10,212 10,690

1,227,672 895,747

Capital adequacy ratio 41.6% 40.6%

Capital adequacy ratio under 1988 Basel Capital Accord 1988

The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio, computed in accordance with the Basel Capital Accord 1988 on the basis, with sub-
sequent amendments including the amendment to incorporate market risks, as of 31 December 2013 and 2012, com-
prised:

2013 2012

Tier 1 capital 477,726 310,675
Tier 2 capital – –

Total equity 477,726 310,675

Risk weighted assets 895,371 902,031

Tier 1 capital ratio 53.4% 34.4%
Total capital ratio 53.4% 34.4%

28. Events after the reporting period

On 27 March 2014, the Bank declared dividends for 2013 in the amount of BYR 6,356 million.
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